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ABSTRACT
(R. Andrews, 10-76)

215-217 West Washington Street circa 1835
Hagerstown remodeled circa 1900
Washington County

In 1831 William D. Bell purchased the Targe tract of land located on West
Washington Street known as the Rochester Estate. Bell divided the tract into
building lots and opened the present Prospect Street along the eastern boundary.
The house under consideration here is described in the 1906 A History of
Washington County as standing on the first lot sold by Bell along the south side
of Washington Street.

Erected in the 1830s, this brick building was extensively altered to its
present appearance about 1900. It is identified in the 1906 history book as
having been erected as a residence for Dr. John Reynolds, a physician. The house
is believed to be the first dwelling constructed on the Washington Street Tots
laid out by Bell and may date from the 1833 to 1835 period.

- About 1900 the house was extensively enlarged and altered, probably for
Clarence Summers Hunter who purchased the property in 1896. The renovations
involved raising the original structure to a full three stories and the construc-
tion of a sizable addition to the south or rear side. In addition to the physical
changes, the use of the building was also changed from a single family dwelling
to multiple apartment units. The changes also represent a change in the neighbor-
hood from a primarily residential area to a mixture of residential and commercial.

The original building apparently was a two and a half story house with a
symmetrical facade of five bays, the present basic fenestration arrangement of the
front. Current analysis indicates that the house probably was one of the more
substantial and elaborate residences of the time signifying that the person for
whom the structure was built had a fairly high degree of affluence. Most
documented houses of this period belonging to the wealthier classes had three bay
facades with the doorway located in one of the end bays.

The building is an important visual element in the streetscape. It is
prominently located atop a hill west of Public Square and is one of the taller
structures in the block, the tallest being a modern highrise to the west. The
building blends well with the neighboring structures in materials and Tines.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
Known as 215-217 West Washington Street in Hagerstown, Washington County,
the building stands on the south side of the street near the center of the block
formed by Prospect and Walnut Streets, the third block west of Public Square.

The building is a three-story-high nineteenth century brick structure
which abuts the sidewalk and has a five-bay symmetrical facade (north elevation).
Resting on a high foundation, the building has a flatish roof which rises to form
a low gable the width of the facade. A two-story screened balcony block
supported by five square brick columns projects from the east end wall over a
driveway. A three story high addition is attached to the rear or south elevation
of the main structure.

The building was erected about 1835 as a two and a half story Classical
influenced house, about half the size of the present building. It appears to have
been five bays across the facade, the present basic fenestration arrangement.

The large rear portion was probably constructed about 1900 when the third story
was added to the front section.

The bricks of the original section are laid in Flemish bond on the facade
(north elevation) and Common Bond (five rows of stretchers to one row of headers)
on the side elevations. The bricks of the later additions (the third story and
the rear portion) are laid in Common bond (seven rows of stretchers to one row of
headers). The facade bricks continue down to the ground level.

The facade or north elevation has a centered double doorway and is
terminated below the gable by a large molded cornice almost forming a pent roof.
The doorways, which probably replaces the original entrance to the house, has a
small portico with round columns and a hip roof. The cornice is rather flat and
has single decorated end brackets. The cornice freize has square raised panels
with rosettes. The facade gable has a centered tripartite half round window.

The principal windows of the building are the rectangular double-hung,
wooden sash type with narrow frames and wooden sills. The window openings of the
front or main portion, not including those of the foundation, have narrow
rectangular wooden entablatures which extend beyond the width of the openings.
The first and second story windows of this section have six-over-one Tights and
the third level windows have one-over-one 1lights. The sashes, and possibly the
frames and entablatures, of the first and second story windows of the original
portion appear to date from about 1300.

The foundation windows of the front or original section have three-over-
three lights and brick flat arches as probably did the window openings of the
original building. The windows of the back addition have segmental arches with
wooden arch panels and one-over-one lights of the circa 1900 period.

#8. SIGNIFICANCE continued

structures in the block, the tallest being a modern highrise to the west. The

building blends well with the neighboring structures in materials and lines but -

is visually scarred by a parking lot to the east. This problem could be rectified

to a great extent by planting trees and shrubs to temper the sharp contrast.
CONTINUE-ON—SEPARATE SHERT-IF NECESSARY

SEE CHAIN OF TITLE
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
In 1831 William D. Bell purchased the large tract of land located on West

Washington Street known as the Rochester Estate (Deed Book MM, p. 380).

Bell

divided the tract into building lots and opened the present Prospect Street along

the eastern boundary.

The house under consideration here is described in the

1906 A History of Washington County (I, 443) as standing on the first lot sold by
Bell along the south side of Washington Street.

present appearance about 1900.
o having been erected as a residence for Dr. John Reynolds (17

Erected in the 1830s, this brick building was extensively altered to its

It is identified in the 1906 history book as
-1840), a physician.

The house is believed to be the first dwelling constructed on the Washington
Street Tots laid out by Bell and may date from the 1833 to 1835 period.

Miss Reynolds.
estate of Maria G. Reynolds who was probably a daughter of Dr. Reynolds.

Book I.N. No. 9, p. 716.) Miss Lawrence, who occupied the house with her sister

The house is labeled on the 1850 Sidney Map of Hagerstown as belonging to

In 1855, Elizabeth Lawrence purchased the property from the

(Deed

Martha, was a daughter of Upton Lawrence, a prominent attorney, and Elizabeth
Hager, a daughter of Jonathan Hager, Jr., a son of the founder of Hagerstown
(Williams, I, 179).

rear side.

About 1900 the house was extensively enlarged and altered, probably for
Clarence Summers Hunter who purchased the property in 1896 (Deed Book 104, p. 456).
The renovations (See Section No. 7) involved raising the original structure to a
full three stories and the construction of a sizable addition to the south or

In addition to the physical changes, the use of the building was also
changed from a single family dwelling to multiple apartment units.

The changes

also represent a change in the neighborhood from a primarily residential area to
a mixture of residential and commercial.

the front.

The original building apparently was a two and a half story house with a
symmetrical facade of five bays, the present basic fenestration arrangement of

Current analysis indicates that the house probably was one of the

more substantial and elaborate residences of the time signifying that the person

for whom the structure was built had a fairly high degree of affluence.
documented houses of this period belonging to the wealthier classes had three bay

facades with the doorway located in one of the end bays.

Most

_ The building is an important visual element in the streetscape. It is
prominently located atop a hill west of Public Square and is one of the taller

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

SEE BOTTOM OF #7
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EJGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

The property measures approximately 79' x 237'.

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
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